
 
OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 

2940 LIMITED LANE NW 
OLYMPIA WA 98502 

 
AGENDA of May 10, 2023  *  10:00 a.m. 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 

 
Be courteous – mute your mic if not speaking 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA (action item) 
(Ask for any corrections, additions/omissions) 
 

CHAIR REPORT 
 

1. Board meeting schedule  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT - Comments limited to three minutes per commenter 
 

CONSENT AGENDA (action item) 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular meeting, April 12, 2023 
2. Expenditures and Disbursements – April 7, 2023 – May 4, 2023 

 

PRESENTATION 
 

1. Ozone 101 – Odelle Hadley, Ph.D. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Draft FY2024 Budget 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Compliance Manager Update - Robert Moody 
2. Engineering Manager Update – Mark Goodin 
3. Senior Air Monitoring Specialist Update – Odelle Hadley, Ph.D. 
4. Communications Manager Update – Dan Nelson 
5. Financial Services Manager Update – Lynn Harding 
6. Executive Director Update – Jeff Johnston, Ph.D. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION  
The Board will now meet in executive session for ___ minutes to discuss the __________ as allowed by RCW 42.30.XXX. The Board 
will be in executive session until _________ am/pm at which time the regular session will reconvene. The Board is/is not expected 
to take further action following the executive session. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

NEXT MEETING – June 14, 2023, 10:00 a.m., in-person at the ORCAA office 

ORCAA’s meeting are held at the above address, however they will also be available virtually via the 
information below. 
 
If you would like to participate in the meeting via Zoom video conference, visit 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88654004897?pwd=NklndCtlUEtPY25UTlFWbG96eXEyQT09 join with 
Meeting ID: 886 5400 4897 and Passcode: N5MiRD 
 
If you would like to participate in the meeting via Zoom audio only, call 1-253-215-8782 and join with 
Meeting ID: 88654004897 and Passcode: 78745 
  

http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/B2a-DraftBoardMinutesApril12-2023.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/B2b-ExpendituresDisbursements.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/B3-Ozone101.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/B4-DraftFY2024Budget.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/B5-ComplianceManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/B6-EngineeringManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/B7-SeniorAirMonitoringSpecialistUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/May10-2023/Board/BoardCommitteeAgendaPlanner.pdf
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88654004897?pwd=NklndCtlUEtPY25UTlFWbG96eXEyQT09


 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
2940 Limited Lane NW 

Olympia, Washington 98502 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – Hybrid via Zoom 
April 12, 2023 

 
A video recording of this meeting is available on the ORCAA YouTube channel at: 

https://www.youtube.com/@ORCAADan/videos 
 

Members present: Jim Cooper, City of Olympia (Chair) (via  Zoom) 
 Greg Brotherton, Jefferson County (Vice Chair) (via Zoom) 
 Joan Cathey, City of Tumwater (via  Zoom) 
 Jill Warne, Grays Harbor County (via Zoom) 

Randy Neatherlin, Mason County (via  Zoom) 
 Carolina Mejia, Thurston County (via Zoom) 

Robin Vazquez, City of Lacey (via Zoom) 
Dave Tobin, Pacific County (via Zoom) 
Mike French, Clallam County (via Zoom) 
 

Members absent:  
 

Legal Counsel: Jeff Myers, of Law, Lyman, Daniel, Kamerrer and Bogdanovich (via Zoom) 
 
Staff Present: Jeff Johnston, Ph.D., Executive Director; Mike Shults, Compliance Supervisor; 

Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager; Odelle Hadley, Ph.D., Senior Monitoring 
Specialist; Dan Nelson, Communications Manager; Lynn Harding, Financial 
Services Manager; Rob Wyland, Air Quality Specialist; and Debbie Moody, 
Office Manager/Public Records Officer (all via Zoom) 

 
Cooper called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. and asked for a roll call of members and staff.  
 
Cooper asked for approval of the agenda. Brotherton moved approval, the motion was seconded and 
carried unanimously. 

 
CHAIR REPORT 
 
Finance Committee Update 
 
Brotherton noted the Finance Committee went over the 3rd quarter of our budget and the balance 
looks to end at $2.4 million in ORCAA’s fund balance. It was noted we are at 83% for revenue and at 
69% on expenditures. 
 
We also looked at the Fiscal Year 2024 budget, which will be brought to the Board in May. We are 
recommending the draft budget show fee increase of 6.3% and a 4% salary adjustment (independent 
of implementing the results of the salary survey) for the 2024 budget. Cooper encouraged the 
members to review the proposed budget in the Finance Committee folder prior to the next meeting. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no public comments. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@ORCAADan/videos


 

 

Page 2 of 5 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Cooper asked approval of the Consent Agenda. Tobin moved approval of the Consent Agenda. The 
motion was seconded and carried unanimously. 
 
Cooper noted with the vote, we have an approved contract for our Director. Cooper noted he would 
finalize with letter/signatures. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Compensation Connections – Market Study 
 
Johnston welcomed Shannon Drohman and Kathy Marek, noting they have worked with us since last 
fall on the compensation market study, also known as a salary survey. The Personnel/Finance 
Committee made some decisions on how to implement the results of the salary survey, and we are 
using that information in preparing our FY 2024 budget. 
 
Drohman, taking the Board through a series of slides, noted Compensation Connections looked at 
both pay and benefits and found ORCAA was quite competitive overall, however ORCAA could 
increase the life insurance/death benefit to be closer to the market. It was also noted that some 
employers utilize sabbaticals to reward longevity, which may not work for ORCAA, but perhaps a 
different way to acknowledge long-standing team members. 
 
Drohman went through the market study and noted they looked at a lot of sources to find comparable 
positions, including other air agencies. They also looked at other air and water resource agencies in 
the area, and other local government agencies. Drohman explained they focused on the job content 
and qualifications when they did comparisons. They found, on average, 5.4 matches per ORCAA 
positions and then aged the market data to July 1, 2023, and calculated the 25th, 50th and 75th 
percentiles of the market. 
 
Looking at the pay range of ORCAA’s jobs they were 8% above the 25th, 4% below 50th, and 10% 
below the 75th percentiles. There are 5 jobs 5% or more below the 50th percentile market. 
With the suggested changes of the 5 jobs and moving the two lowest paid agency positions to a 
higher range, puts ORCAA at market (50th percentile). 
 
Johnston stated we implemented the recommendations suggested by Drohman and Marek and 
brought the draft to the personnel/finance committee and they agreed to have us move forward. 
 
Cooper asked if there were any questions or comments. Neatherlin questioned why we would move 
someone up to the next step and not just leave them where they are until the step. Neatherlin asked if 
we could see where we are at the percentile by moving the 5 jobs. Johnston stated he felt it was 
important in implementing a salary schedule that staff be placed on it. It would complicate matters 
otherwise. Drohman noted adjusting the 5 jobs and starting at the higher range overall, puts ORCAA 
on market. (Mejia arrived 10:28) 
 
There were no other questions/comments.  
 
Resolution 281-Air Quality Awareness Week (May 1-5, 2023) 
 
Nelson explained the EPA Air Now program has sponsored Air Quality Awareness Week on a 
national level for a few years. We have participated in previous years, but formally adopting it seems 
appropriate. The week runs May 1-5, and each day has a different focus related to air quality. 



 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 
Mejia asked about the date and wondered what they represent. Nelson explained these dates 
represent social media pushes to amplify the messages. Nelson added we are working with other 
agencies to have a pool of information to share. Mejia encouraged the counties who have public 
health services to also push the messages out during that week on social media as well. Nelson 
noted the social media coordinators are welcome to contact him.  Cooper asked Nelson to forward kit 
to the Board so they can share the information. 
 
Neatherlin moved approval of Resolution 281 regarding Clean Air Week as presented. Vazquez 
seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. 
 
Executive Director’s draft 2023-25 Performance Measures 
 
Cooper noted we have included in Johnston’s contract that he develops performance measures for 
Board review.  
 
Johnston noted he has a preliminary draft and wanted to note the four items currently on the list. We 
have a staff of 17 and approximately one-quarter of them could conceivably be retiring in the next 2-3 
years, so it is important to focus on succession planning. Updating the strategic plan is important and 
we want to make sure we are focusing on the right things and the plan is meaningful. Johnston stated 
the plan ties into refining ORCAA’s performance management culture. We need to look at replacing 
the agency database as we are using an antiquated system. With that, we also need to work on our 
overall IT infrastructure. We are in need of adding additional laptops, updating our servers, etc. 
 
Johnston noted these are just his initial ideas and is open to additional suggestions. Vazquez felt the 
list was on point. Vazquez added items 1 and 4 could be clearly linked as you are working on the 
performance management culture, having part of the process be succession planning for their own 
position. 
 
Cooper noted Johnston can finalize and bring it back to the Board for approval next month. 
 
DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
Compliance Manager Update 
 
Shults note the compliance report is available and as you can see the team has been very busy. 
Outdoor burning is picking up which means complaints also increase. Shults highlighted the For 
Business section of ORCAA’s new website.  Under Business Assistance there is a list of categories of 
many of the business we regulate. Shults went over how we handle gasoline stations with regards to 
permitting and testing requirements. Shults showed how the facilities can also use the site (Tobin was 
excused at 10:47). A gas station map is available that shows the tests required per site. 
 
Engineering Manager Update 
 
Goodin noted we haven’t received a lot of new applications recently but noted this is not unusual as 
permitting fluctuates quite a bit for many reasons. Goodin did add, this doesn’t mean we don’t have 
work to do as the list also includes Air Operating Permits (AOP). Goodin highlighted Interfor Port 
Angeles. This new lumbermill that had received approval through the Notice of Construction process 
to establish their facility. They have done some modifications and they are now big enough to trigger 
an AOP. They have submitted their application and their approval order (permit) is currently in the 
works. 
 



 

 

Page 4 of 5 

Cooper asked if there is an update on the Crown Cork & Seal case. Goodin noted the case is moving 
in right direction. 
 
Senior Air Monitoring Specialist Update 
 
Hadley noted it was requested by Johnston to give a brief presentation on Particulate Matter. The 
slides were presented and explained by Hadley.  
 
Regarding the monthly air quality for March, Hadley noted we got nearly 100% of our data and all 
days were in the “good” category. Port Townsend and Shelton lost data due to malfunctions. We still 
don’t have information from Raymond—we are still working on a solution.  
 
Grays Harbor Saturation Study shows some sort of event, possibly a fire early March, in Quinault. 
Despite the peak at Quinault, nothing went over 10 micrograms meter cubed. This past month we had 
several site visits and performed quality control checks that are done quarterly. We released the RFP 
for site improvement work at Cheeka Peak. We did receive one bid and it appears to be an excellent 
bid so we accepted it and will be working with them to get this project running.  
 
Communications Manager Update 
 
Nelson noted he had attended home shows in Jefferson and Clallam Counties. He also attended a 
Mason County public event regarding wildfires and community readiness. We are prepping for an 
Olympia area home show as well as another wildfire event in Port Townsend, and an event in Grays 
Harbor. 
 
The woodstove recycling program is picking up and it appears we will have similar pool of money for 
the next cycle, and we will plan on sending in our application early fall. 
 
Nelson stated he has been working with Johnston and the Northwest Air Quality Communicators 
Group to develop the concept for a shared communications platform to better coordinate the 
development and distribution of public education and outreach materials. We hope this will help all 
the agencies in Washington, as well as Oregon and Idaho. 
 
Financial Services Manager Update 
 
Harding stated we have had a lot of RFPs and we are excited for the upcoming Cheeka Peak project. 
We also have an RFP out for replacement of our gutters. Harding added we will have some other 
maintenance items for our building as well. 
 
Executive Director Update 
 
Johnston noted he has spent a lot of time working with managers on developing the draft budget, 
including steps needed to implement the salary survey results. Johnston stated he had mentioned 
Clean Air Grants last month, part of the Inflation Reduction Act, and noted it is a $25 Million available 
to state and local clean air agencies, nationwide. Washington is getting a total of $472,000. Ecology 
will be using a large portion of that grant. ORCAA has requested a portion to cover the cost of an 
aethalometer for our Lacey monitoring site. Another grant is EPA’s Climate Pollution Reduction Grant 
which provides grants to local governments, tribes, and territories to implement plans to reduce 
Green House Gas emissions. The Governor’s office is the lead on this for Washington and they need 
to determine how the $3 million will be distributed to the state.  
 



 

 

Page 5 of 5 

Johnston wanted to remind everyone that our June meeting will be in-person, so we’d like to have 
everyone here if possible. We will hold the public hearing for our budget, and then after the meeting 
we’re planning to celebrate paying off our building and ORCAA’s 55th anniversary. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Neatherlin wanted to thank Nelson for going to the Mason County event.  
 
Neatherlin shared a story of a recent meeting he attended. He noted he ended up discussing the 
ORCAA Board and how it is composed and who is involved. He prefaced, saying he is not good at 
remembering names. Cooper’s name had come up in conversation and after some discussion 
Neatherlin had stated “just make him Chair” because the man is 100% professional. Cathey’s name 
also came up and it was discussed how competent she is. Neatherlin noted there was one name he 
just couldn’t remember, and he had told the group that each time this person speaks he can’t help but 
think ‘dang that person is smart’ and when he was trying to recall her name during the conversation, 
everyone said “oh you must be talking about Vazquez from Lacey.”  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (per RCW 42.30.110) 
 
There was no Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Cooper adjourned the meeting at 11:38 p.m. 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of the ORCAA Board of  
Directors held on April 12, 2023, in Olympia, Washington. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Jeff C. Johnston, Ph.D., Executive Director  Jim Cooper, Chair 
Olympic Region Clean Air Agency   ORCAA Board of Directors    
 
DATED: _______________________________ 



������� ��		��
���� �����������������
���
�� ���������
���� � � ��� �!"#$%$&'#$"( )*+$,�� ��-.�/0����������������������1--23���4��1--2335 )*+$,��3 ��6��1.��0������������������ �!"#$%$&'#$"( )*+$,�3- 36��-.3-0�������������������1--2332�4��1--2315 )*+$,�3/ 36�1-.3�0�������������������� �!"#$%$&'#$"( )*+$,�3/ 36-11.2-0�������������������2�1/��4��2�1�� )*+$,�4�7'8+",, ���6/�1.�50���������������� �!"#$%$&'#$"(9 )*+$,�4�:;(;%$#9 �/6-1/.2�0����������������<�
���=>?���@
�	��<�@���	@��� ABCDEFGHIJK�����������������������L@
��M����
��N�����O�	�P��
����Q��	���O��@	��
�	�P��
@�NH�

RSTP��M�U=V�RW�MS=�W���U��V=WMT32�-�X$Y$#;Z�X'(;�![6�\,8Y*$'�[)��25/-34�/-1�Q��	���??	�]����O�=>?���@
�	�D��@̂�	����
D������@	��<	��O�	_̀:ab  �c��\d� e��7�db\c�?	@��fD�ACAF�
�	��N��P���ID�ACAF

ghijklmnopqrs�thj�uv�wxsy z{|{}~}�



������� �	
� �	��� �	��������
 �����
���������������� �� �!" #$%&'���()*�%�*+�))��,,- ./!// ../0 12����������������������3"//4!. ��.!�!" 5�66+�-�5),����7�8,+9��,-:�;;5 ./!// <4/0//������������������������3"//4!.< ��.!�!" 5�=���)�>?-��,--�'��(��,-:�@��0 ./!// .3301�������������������������3"//4!.4 ��.!�!" 5�A=,�-������5���,�����-�;;5 ./!// .:3</0//���������������������3"//4!!/ ��.!�!" $,=�+�A,���������)�7* ./!// .:! "0 "���������������������3"//4!!. ��.!�!" @��,+A,B��0�,�:�@��0 ./!// 1</03"������������������������3"//4!!! ��.!�!" ;�C:�;*A��:�$���,): ./!// 3:" !03.���������������������3"//4!!" ��.!�!" ;��B,�D�-�E��F?�=A,��:�@��0 ./!// !.01.��������������������������3"//4!!� ��.!�!" %�������$�-=�-�) ./!// <40</��������������������������3"//4!!1 ��.!�!" %?7,��8�?�B���,+7* ./!// .:.1<0�1���������������������3"//4!!3 ��.!�!" 8,�?+���-��,�(��)�7* ./!// . 30�4������������������������3"//4!! ��.!�!" G080�>��H ./!// �:!< 0.4���������������������3"//4!!< ��.!�!" I,+�J���K�+,),--:�>,)),9?, ./!// �.3034���������������������������������������� ��!/�!" �A=)�*A,���8,�?+��*�$,=�0&%�'; ./!// !:� /0!/���������������������3"//4!!4 ��!1�!" #�+�E�K�-�,�'7A�0�#--�������� ./!// 43/0//������������������������3"//4!"/ ��!1�!" 5��*����L)*A=�� ./!//  .<04.������������������������3"//4!". ��!1�!" 5�A��-��5�6),�5�A0:�@��0 ./!// ".10.1������������������������3"//4!"! ��!1�!" $,=�+�A,������M,��+,A,���8*-�,A- ./!// !10//��������������������������3"//4!"" ��!1�!" D+�*-�N�+6�+�5�0�8(,+���O-�L����, ./!// "/0//��������������������������3"//4!"� ��!1�!" '�?������'�-��K��,+ ./!// 130!���������������������������3"//4!"1 ��!1�!" �(,�M(�J�A,�5�))�6�+���9, ./!// ".!01/������������������������3"//4!"3 ��!1�!" 8?�+�-,�%,-��'���7,A,��:�@��0 ./!// <30�1��������������������������3"//4!" ��!1�!" I,+�J���K�+,),--:�>,)),9?, ./!// "40/!��������������������������3"//4!"< ��!1�!" M�6,+��K*)��B ./!// < 0//������������������������������������������ ��!1�!" $,=�0����;�6�+�E�@�B?-�+�,-�&�;E@ ./!// !:/""04/���������������������34."1�&"4." . ��!<�!" 8�)�+�,-�E�>,�,���- ./!// .<3:1 4034���������������������) PQRSTUVWXYZ���������������

[\]̂ �_��̀ab_[c��\a�c��_̀��bac�]!4�/�;�A��,B�;��,��K:�L)*A=���K#��4<1/!&31/"������̀�de
�f��g�ahi��je
�f�S��ek�f����
S�	�j�lef��mf	�g�fnopqr�st�uvuw�xypz{|y�}~���t�uvuw

�����������������



�



�������������	
����������������������
	��������������������������������������������������������������
���� ��!�������������
���������������"�������"��������
�#�#����������������������	��#����"�
����������"������"������������"����������$
������
�����������%�����������"����&���	�������������"�����������"����������
������������'������������������
��#��"�����������	����(��	��������������	�	����
�"�����!����)���* �



��������	�
�������������	��������������������	���	����������������������
�������������������������������������	���		����������	���������������	
�������������������������������	���������������������������
������������	����������������������� !"#$%&'()*�������	����������������������� +,-./0��123445�67839:;<; .



����������	
	��������������
	�	�	������	��������������������������������������������������������������	��������	� �!�"���������	�������
�
��#������ �!$"�% && &&% '
% &&

()�*+,�-�./012)�%&2
3)�4&5 !����	����6	�7����8	������	������	����	
��	 9



����������	

����������������������������
���������������������������������������	���� ��	������������������!�������	��"�

�#��$��������	���$	��������	�������	��������������$���%�$������
����&��
����''�"����	������$(�&����"��)��	������	��)�"�������������)���''�"�
���*��������+	������$(�����$���'�	$�
������$���� ,



�����
�������
���
��	
�	�	����� ��	
�	�	����� ��	
�	�	��	��� ��	
�	�	��
��� ��	��	�	���������������

�������
 !!"#

�



������ ���	�
�������������
������� �
�
������
���
�����������
���������
����������������� ������ �



��������	
��������
�
����
��	
���
����	��������	��
������	
���������������������
����
�
����
��	
������	�	�
����������������� �����!�"�������	
���
��	�#��$�
�
��������	
���������
�
������%����&
��	������	�	�����������'����(������������������	�
���)������
��	
�������	��%����
�
������*�������+�	
��,-��������	�������)���� +�+.++
/+,+0+

12�2.+�3�+4++ 1202.+�3�+4++ 12��2.+�3�+4++ 12�02.+�3�+4++ 12.�2.+�3�+4++ 12.02.+�3�+4++ 12�2.+�3�+4++

56789�:;;<=
%������������������������������������)���� 1



���������	��	
����
�



��

������	�
�������������������	������������������������������� � !""#$%�&!'(�)* �+,-../0�123435�6!78*'�#)7�#99&":#)�* �'�*�;&((&<�)8�6!78*'�7&9!"*)' =�>?*@*)!*A�BCDEFGHIJKEL�MFG�N::$&:$�#'�&) �;$&"�O&)'�)8*)9%�?* *$@* >1!)7�P#(#)9*>Q� '�&;�:(#))*7�6!�(7�)8�"#�)'*)#)9*�#)7�(*# *�&(7��":$&@*"*)' >ORQN�S�T*:*)7*)'�O&@*$#8*�O&)'$�6!'�&)��� '&$%>U$&:& *7�V*<�W#(#$%�W'*:�W'$!9'!$*>XKMYI�ZEE�[\]EGĴE>_̀abcdefbgahij�jklkjkmnk�ok/pk�qr0i�smnrtuku�+,-..�,k0irtvsim0�w3x5�#)7�w3xy�$*;*$$�)8�'&�'�*�:$&9*  �;&$�#7z! '�)8�;** �#)7�:*$>9#:�'#�#  *  "*)' �6# *7�&)�'�*�O&) !"*$�U$�9*�{)7*|�}OU{~�������������������������������� N::(%�)8�'�*�OU{�;&$�'�*�%*#$�*)7�)8�T*9*"6*$�3433�&;������'&�1**�U$&8$#" W'#;;�9&":(*'*7�#�<&$�(&#7�#)#(% � �;&$�#((�;**�:$&8$#" �}$*8� '$#'�&)��# 6* '& ��&!'7&&$6!$)�)8��)&'�9*�&;�9&) '$!9'�&)��)&'�9*�&;��)'*)'��#)7���'(*��~�9&) � '*)'�<�'��?* &(!'�&)�w3x5#::$&@*7�6%�'�*�P&#$7�:$&@�7�)8�;&$�#7z! '"*)' �'&�;**� 9�*7!(* � ��k��tu�kv�smnrtuk0����h��/0W'#;;�<�((�6$�)8�#�$*9&""*)7#'�&)�;&$�#�)*<�:& �'�&)�&;�1�)#)9*�N  � '#)'�'&�'�*�1�)#)9*O&""�''**�6%��#)!#$%�3435� N"6�*)'��&)�'&$�)8�#)7�R!'7&&$�P!$)�)8�:$&8$#" �$*(%�&)�1*7*$#(�W'#'*�OR?�� !::&$'� ��*�6!78*'�7$#< �&)��)$* *$@*7�1!)7�P#(#)9*�'&�6#(#)9*�'�*�6!78*'� O&)'�)!*�'&� *'�# �7*�;!)7 �;&$�6&#$7�#::$&@*7�9&)'�)8*)9%�#)7�9#:�'#(�;!)7 � R;;�9*�P!�(7�)8� �&)�'&$�)8���!�:"*)'� T#'#6# *���!�:"*)'� �#9#'�&)�W�9��Q*#@*� N  !"* ��44��&99!:#)9%��)�$*)'#(��)9&"*����������
��������� P!78*'�?*@*)!* �#$*�:$&z*9'*7�#'������"�((�&)��#6&!'��3����8�*$�'�#)�343��� �$#)'�$*@*)!* �$*:$* *)'�3����1** �#)7�N  *  "*)' ������U*)#('�* �y���?*)' ��� 9*((#)*&! 3���#)7�O&)'�)8*)9%�T$#<�x�� V&�"#z&$��)9$*# * �7*9$*# * �&;�&)>8&�)8�;!)7�)8��)�*|� '�)8�Q&9#(��W'#'*��#)7�1*7*$#(��$#)' �OR?���U�3�y��OUR���&&7 '&@*��7!9#'�&)��� ¡¢£¤¥¦§¦¡̈���&&7 "&�*�?*7!9'�&)���1W�O� �$#)' �#$*�"!('�>%*#$�9&)'$#9'�'*$" �$#)8�)8�;$&"�3>y�%*#$ � 1**�:$&8$#" ��)9(!7*�'�*������OU{



��

� ������	�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���� ���������������!������������������� �������������"�����������#�����$����"��%#������%�������������������������	�
����
����&'())*+�,,�-./01�+02134+����������%5�����$�������67889:;�<=�>?@ABCACD�� E����$��%#��������������F��������GH���F������"�� ��������������������H� I�$������%#���������"������������#��������
��%#�����"���#�������JJ�K����5#�$��������##����"�#������"��������L��
�������M�K�N�������5O���������������P#�����������K�Q������P#�������������R����F�!��S����������������#�$F����"�T�����$�P��������
���"�UIP��#���������V�F������������ WF#��F����������
�������X����$�X��#�X��������"�Y�����������
��F�ERU�TF#��$���N���
��������"���������� ��������
���QSX�#������������� ������� U���������������������U�F#���������U�����������
���ZS5E�5Z��������������
���[�GH"���� Z�������������������
����#���������������$�X���������I����������������
�G\"���� E��������������������� ��������������
�����5]0̂_]�-.̂_̀4_._34�0a�b_4c*�c4d+̂̀4����G�"�Y�� Z�������LX�
������#���������
��������������#��#��
������

"�������
������
����$ ���������$L�����L�������������� W�������������
��������
��������������
����������F�����������

�����#���"�����F��������G��"���� U������������������������EQI�
���#�$�����#�������������������������$�G�Y"���L$���� PSUEE�������������������%�� �5�����������������XEP����Q���F �������� U�������������
����TIE5�EF�������S������I�����ESI���������
�G�H�"Y��"������������F������������F�������������������"�
�����������##��������������H��������������5������������������U������������� ���������������#���������F����������������������#�������������F#����F��������U��!��I��!��UIP�����e���N�$� W���������F����������������F#����F������
��

���"� �������"�Z	EU"�������"��%�������#�������"�
����������#����F����� I���5�

��

���� �����������Q���F �������� Q���������������������������

�������I���
���U����$f<BghBiABj;�k�f9@hg9l�m7BnCD�U���������$���������#������� ������������������
������#���
���#��o���"�N������������������������p��"����L����F�����������������q���$��
�������������������F����� $��������!�"����������������������
$����"���F�����!���������r������������������$��UPST������5F�o���
�������"������F�����������"������������F������"�����������#������������� $�QSX"�����������F������������"����

���������������������
�����������"�������������P���s������������U���������$����5����������q�������������##��%�F����$�����F������
���F�����������������#����������������E�����q�����
���� ������������������"��������������������������
$��������!�"����������q���������������$������������#���������������
��������������t�����������������N����������� �������
�����$����
���#��#���������������� ���������������
����#���
����#��������#��#�������



��������	
�������
���	��
����	
�
��
���
��
��
����������������������
���� �! ���"#��$ ���"#��% ���"#��%� ���"#��& ���"#��'()*+,- ..��/���0"� �1 
�����
2 ���.���� 34567)*78	
�
��
 9:�;<;; ���%=%' 9:�;<;>?@ABCD EF&=G HI<<JK547L97874,- MNOP>>QR � MOOPSNNR ;M<P<<<R � MNSP<<<R � MNSP<<<RK547LT*,*7 MSNPNO>� MSQPH;U M><P<<<� MSUP<<<� MSUP<<<3V;I>�L�W)5-5XY�V5Z[*54[ZX� MSP><<� MSP><<� MSP><<� MSP><<� MSP><<K3\�34567)*�]̂W3(LV,[Z*7Z,Z)7�_�\̀74,*[5Za UQPUHO� OQP<UU� N>P<>N� N<PHQ;� N<PHQ;(b3�c4,Z*�][*d�W3( L� MSMP><< L� MSMP><<� Le558a*5f7�b78+)*[5Z�_�g5+Z*Y�345X4,h�]̂W)5-5XY >OP<MN� MU<P<<< MHOP<<U� MH<P<<<� MH<P<<<e558a*5f7�c4,Z* M<PQO;� M<PQO;� M<PQO;� M<PQO;� M<PQO;ijjD(aa7aah7Z*a HQHPS>SR � HNOPQNUR HNOPQNUR � >SSPUUMR � >>>PM;;R(ZZ+,-�b7X[a*4,*[5Z SU>PS<;� SOHP<<< SNMPSMH� HM<PNMM� H;UPSHUk[*-7�l�� Q<SPQMH� QOQPU>; QOQPU>;� QUOP;;;� QQQPNQSm\K�L�mTb MH<PHSS� MQSP<Q< Q>P><<� M<HPSUU� M<OP>>;m\n�L�V,654̂V[Z54 ;PNM;� MP<;;� SPQ>O� SP><<� SPQH<W9TWK ;QP<MN� SOPSO>� HHP;><� >UP;OS� >NP;>>W)5-5XY�\f74a[Xd* M;PNHO� M>P<<<� MSPMQ;� M>P><<� M>PU<<\+*8554�g+4Z[ZX L� L� L� L� L(ao7a*5a MSOPQSU� MS;POQ< MSHP<<<� MSNP<<<� MHHP>Q<p,Z8�K-7,4[ZX SQPQ>N� ;QPS<<� HHPM>U� HHP><<� HQP;O<qCrj@37Z,-*[7a�sm\lt ;MUP>><R � U>P<<<R ;<SPQQNR � MO>P<<<R � MN>P<<<RnZf7a*h7Z*�nZ*747a* MSPMHQ� M<P<<<� ;HPHUN� ;<P;>Q� MUP<<<V[a)7--,Z75+a�nZ)5h7 MPOO;� MP<<<� MPNN>� ;P;<<� ;PS<<g+[-8[ZX�nZ)5h7 >NPUNH� >NP>N;� HOPQUQ� HQPSQ;� HNPUHHk5*,-�b7f7Z+7�o7u547�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�v4,]sat ;P>N<PUSNR � ;PO;OP;>SR ;PUOUP>>UR�������������� ;PN>UP<;QR ;POUQPM<UR �(̀ 4̀5̀4[,*[5Z�u45h�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9+Z8ac7Z74,-�9+Z8�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�v4,] LR � ;UHPNM>R M;NPQQHR � ;MQP>;;R � MO>P>>OR������	
�
��
����������
��� %wxy=wz&y{ � &w$=&w$E|{���������������� %wy$zw%%${�������������� &w$z&wx'|{ &w=E$wEEx{ �c7Z74,-�9+Z8�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�v4,] LR � ;UHPNM>R M;NPQQHR � ;MQP>;;R � MO>P>>ORk[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�g+[-8�_�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�b7[ho+4a7h7Z* S>PS;<R � M<NPHH>R N;PHN;R � HQP>;UR � M<P<<<R()*+,-�b7f7Z+7 ;P>N<PUSNR � ;PO;OP;>SR ;PUOUP>>UR�������������� ;PN>UP<;QR ;POUQPM<UR ��1"���
}.����� ;PHM;PNH<R � ;PO;OP;>SR ;PO;HPU;NR�������������� SPM;UP<;MR SP<>MPQQ>R �0���~����������1���������������� ��%=%& ��%=%' ��%=%x>UUPUSSR � QSMPQN>R � Q>QPNQSR �M<NP<MNR � MQP>;UR � LR �LR � S<P<<<R � M<P<<<R �QOQPU>;R � QUOP;;;R � QQQPNQSR ���������	
�������
���	��
����	
�
��
���
��
��
�� ���"#��$ ���"#��% ���"#��%� ���"#��& ���"#��'()*+,- ..��/���0"� �1 
�����
2 ���.���� 34567)*78
��
��
� 9:�;<;; ���%=%' 9:�;<;>�A�@q�� 'F==GT,-,4[7a MPQM;PMNOR � MPQN>PS<>R MPQQUPO>;R�������������� MPOSOP<SQR MPOQMPONUR �Wh̀ -5Y77�g7Z7u[*a HNNP;O;� >QQPHU> >SUPQ<<� Q<OP>;N� Q;<PU<<��D���C�������@�j������� ;PMMMPHO<R � ;P;QMPUO<R ;P;<>PH>;R�������������� ;PHHQP>Q>R ;PHO;P>NUR �BqB��A�@q���\uu[)7�T+̀ -̀[7âTh�T+̀ -̀[7âT,u7*Y OPHHOR � OPS<<R � M<P<<<R � ;MP>QUR � OP><<Rc,a5-[Z7�l7d[)-7a HPSNM� QP<<<� >PUSQ� QP;<<� QPH<<���������r����D�����D�������� L��Lc7Z74,-��e T̂e ;SP;<H� S<P<O>� SMP<<<� MSPQ>NR � MQP<<<Lc5f�( L� QP><<� QP>>N� QP>Q<� QPU<<L�Z5]g7HP�nZ)I L� L� L� ;PH<<� Lg5,48�5u�v[47)*54a�k4,f7-�b7[hoI L� MP;<<� L� L� LT*,uu�k4,[Z[ZXP�K5Zu747Z)7aP�k4,f7- >PQU>� MUPSN<� ;<PSSM� ;<POQO� ;;P<<<�������������D�������� L��Lp7X,-�s(**54Z7Yt HNP;NQ� ><P<<<� >SP;SQ� Q<P<<<� Q>P<<<L345)7aa�T74f[)7a L� HP><<� MPN<<� HP><<� HPU<<LT,-,4Y�T+4f7Ŷ(8L�5)�T+̀ 5̀4* L� >P<<<� MMP;<<� L� LL�b̂(8L�5)�T+̀ 5̀4* L� L� ;P<<<� SP><<� SP><<LT*4,*7X[)�3-,Z� ̀8,*7 L� OP<<<� L� OP<<<� Lk7-7̀d5Z7 M;PHO<� M>P><<� MHPQOH� MUP<<<� MUP><<v,*,o,a7 L� L� L� L� L35a*,X7 HPOSS� >P<<<� QP<QN� QP;<<� QP><<nZa+4,Z)7�sg-8XP�l7dP�T*,uut S>POU;� SOP<<<� SNP;QH� H<POS>� H;PHQOe7--Z7aa�345X4,h HSU� H><� ><< ><<� >;>�������j�������������q������¡� L��LW8+),*[5Z�_�\+*47,)d�s34[Z*[ZXP�à7)[,-�h,[-[ZXaP�7*)t OPOMQ� MMP>Q<� MOPON;� ;MPUN<� ;;P<<<Le7oa[*7�V,[Z*7Z,Z)7 L� ;>P<<<� SSPU><� ;P;><� ;P;><V[a)7--,Z75+a S<M� >><� HQN >><� >><v+7a�_�T+oa)4[̀*[5Za SPOH;� HPS<<� HPM<<� >PSS;� >PH<<(+8[*̂())*X QP>NN� MQP<<<� MUPM<<� ;P><<� MNP<<<����������� L� L� L� L� Lb7Z*LT,*7--[*7�\uu[)7 O<<� L� L� L� LV,[Z*7Z,Z)7�L�K5̀[74�̂�3+4)d,a7 M<PNHU� ;PH<<� ;PS;M� ;PH<<� ;P><<l7d[)-7�3+4)d,a7 L� ;QP<<<� S<P<<<� SMP<<<� SMP<<<V,[Z*7Z,Z)7�L�l7d[)-7a ;PSSS� SPN><� HPNQH� >P;<<� >P;<<��D���C�����A��������������j������� MUOP;UHR � ;O>PQO>R SMHP<U>R � ;O;POMMR � ;OUPQNSRqii¢�j�£�¤?��q�j@AC¢B?�nZ*747a*�W¥̀7Za7�_�34[Z)[̀,-�L�\uu[)7�g-8XI SS<R � HHP<<<R HSPNQHR � LR � LR *[-[*[7â(-,4h�V5Z[*54[ZX MOP<SO� MNP<<<� MNPQUH� MNP<<<� ;<P<<<¦,Z[*54[,-�T+̀ -̀[7a MMPQHS� MSP>QO� M;P;Q<� MHPMMM� MHPQU>V,[Z*7Z,Z)7�\uu[)7�g-8XI NP;;<� MOP;<<� SNPUMQ� MUP<><� M<P<<<p,Z8a),̀[ZX�T74f[)7a L� HP<<<� L� L� Lp7,a7d5-8�nh̀ 45f7h7Z*a L� ;SP<<<� ;MP<<<� >;P<<<� U>P<<<��D���C�����q������£������§�q�������§ SNP;SMR � M;MPUQOR MSQPQMHR � M<;PMQMR � MMNPQU>RBqB�A¤̈ ¢B¢DC@AC¢©j�q�j@AC¢B?e558ah5ª7�b78+)*[5Ẑb7)Y)-7�345X4,h HMP>><R � MSOP<<<R MM;P<<<R � M<>P<<<R � M<>P<<<R(b3�L�W3(�L�\̀74,*[5Z,- L� MSMP><< L� MSMP><<� LW)5-5XY�\f74a[Xd*�977a M;PNHO� M>P<<<� MSPMQS� M>P><<� M>PU<<V5Z[*54[ZX�345X4,h�L���� ;QPNQ<� SHP><<� SMP<<<� S>P<<<� S>P><<V5Z[*54[ZX�345X4,ha ;PMN;� >PHN<� QPU;H� QPHOH� >P><<\-YV(3�34567)* L� L� HP<<<� ;P<<<� LT7)+4[*Y�v7̀5a[*�b7u+Z8a S<>� L� MPU<M� L� L��D���C�����B���A����������������q�������§ OSPN>>R � S;HPHN<R MQOP>OOR � ;N>PHOHR � MQMPU<<R������
��
�2���	
� %w'$%wy'={ � %wyy&wz%&{���������������� %w|%'wz%y{�������������� &w$%zw=%${ &w=x$wEEx{ ���1��"�.�"��«2�����1¬����1���x $zzwzyy{ � «$Exw'z=¬{ � «&zw$z%¬{ � «$Eywyyx¬{ «$zxwxx|¬{ �0���~����������1��"�.�"��«2�����1¬� ���%=%% ���%=%' ���%=%x�m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;; MH;PHUNR ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;S s;UHPNM>tR � sM;NPQQHtR����������������m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;H s;MQP>;;tR�m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;> sMO>P>>OtR ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�k[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9:;<;S�_�3,Yo,)ª S>PS;<R � M<NPHH>R N;PHN;R ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�k[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9:;<;H�_�3,Yo,)ª HQP>;UR ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�k[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9:;<;> M<P<<<R$zzwzyy{ � «$Exw'z=¬{ � «&zw$z%¬{ � «$Eywyyx¬{ «$zxwxx|¬{ �35̀+-,*[5Z >Q;PMU< >UUPQU>374�K,̀[*,�(aa7aah7Z* =F|%E =Fy%' =FyE$
}.�������}������ �$=G������®"� �1���1� ��̄�«��1����������"®���1� ��̄���	w������	w�0�� w��.���1�� ¬���°"�����®������..��/��Fx'%=%&

>I;<J

=F|Ey

2	��

���%=%&
>QUPNN;

2	�����%=%&

���%=%&

���9[a),-�:7,4�e54ª-5,8���b7̀,Yh7Z*�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8���K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9+Z8



��������	
�������
���	��
�������������������������������� !��!"�# 
$%&'(%)*+,-./ �011)2%�3045)% �1676$)4 89:;<+,<=>?@A�BC�DEDB >?@A�BC�DEDD FGHI�JK�LMLN >?@A�BC�DEDOPQRSTTSTR�UVWX�YZ[ZW\]̂ ^^_�_̂^^^^^^^^ àbcbadefg�� �� fahfdacèg�� �� àebeaìeg�� �� àb̀eaifcg�� �������jklm�n��opqpr?p�stuvw@�xpwy� z{|}~{��}��� �� z{���{||���� �� z{}|�{~z���� �� z{���{�~���� ���������mmn�����pr�t�?ypu�stuvw@�xpwy �z{��z{}�~���� �� �z{�z�{�z}���� �� ��{�z�{~z����� ��� ��{~|�{��|���� ������������������������� ��¡�¢¢£¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤�� fahfdacèg�� �� àebeaìeg�� �� àb̀eaifcg�� �� àdcia¥ddg�� ���)(1�
24�� d¦ih¦fhff d¦ih¦fhfi d¦ih¦fhfc d¦ih¦fhf§p̈rpyw@�s?r��©ªr�tr«prvA�¬yw�w��@tp���ª�sx�®?�«p�� gh̄hh f̀eaddcg�� �� f̀da§ffg�� �� b̀§a§§bg�� ��°±²³ ĺµ¶�P·k·µ̧�m�¹́ºm̧·k�»�·¼½Qµ¶¾¿ÀÁÂÃÃÄÅÄÆÂÇÄÈÉÃÊ ��ËÌµÍºµÎ�µ̧Ï�Ð�Ë·ÑºÍ·k�́lµ¶mÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm¿�����prup�©ªr�tr«prvA�ÕÖ×Ø�sx�®?�«p��@puu�Ùt�@p�Ú����uÛ ���{}z}��� �� ��|{�~���� �� ���{������ �� ���{z�|��� ��ÜÓÃÇÝÄÆÇÓÔ ��mm¿��Ùt�@p�Ú�©ªr�tr«prvA Þ<<�ß</:à Þ<<�ß</:à �~{~~~��� �� �~{~~~��� ��²ÃÃÄáÉÓÔ ��mm¿��Ùprwr�u�âpv?yt�A�¬p�ªut�u |{�~~��� �� �{�|~��� �� �{�|~��� �� �{�|~��� �����Ë·ÑºÍ·k�́lµ¶mÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�äããtvp�®?t@�tr« }~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� ��ÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�åªrt�ªytr«��æ?t�çpr� z~{~~~��� �� z~{~~~��� �� z~{~~~��� �� z~{~~~��� ��ÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�¬w�wèwupé�æ?t�çpr� ��~{~~~��� �� z�|{~~~��� �� z|~{~~~��� �� z�|{~~~��� ��êÉÂÃÃÄáÉÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�Úwvw�tªréâtvë�ìpwqp� ���{�|���� �� �|~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� ��ËÌííºÍ�¶îï�mÍ¼º̧Í�¶îð�mºÎµ·Í�¶�́lµ¶m bhhaebfg�� �� e§cac§dg�� �� àhifa¥bbg�� �� àhd¥a§b§g�� ����ËÌµÍºµÎ�µ̧Ï�́lµ¶ñºÍk��ò�j¼ÌÎ¼·í�¹¶l��R�µ�¼·k�́lµ¶¾ ó̀heah̀eôg�� �� ó̀da§f¥ôg�� ��� õg�� �� õg�� ��öTðQ÷SRTøñQð�́lµ¶�P·k·µ̧� àiica§fbg�� �� àh§̀aiehg�� �� ¥bda§idg�� �� §¥dàb̀g�� ���<.9���= d¦ih¦fhff d¦ih¦fhfi d¦ih¦fhfc d¦ih¦fhf§�������	�
����������������£ ß./.�+<����~�zz ß./.�+<����~�z��äããtvp�®?t@�tr«C��yªçtuuªyA��ª�p��ª�èp��wt��BDéBéDEDD gciae§c gh��r�pypu��yw�p���E��C�rª��prw@�A�pwy@A��wAªãã��Ñ�¼·ÍºµÎ�ËÌµÍºµÎ�µ̧Ï�́lµ¶m���������£££££££ *��.�:-�,�<�,. /!�"<=� #� :.9=�=!9<+,!:��.�=�$/.+<=�!��9<�<9%<�Ë·ÑºÍ·k�́lµ¶m&��������££££££££¤�́lµ¶�P·k·µ̧����������£££££££££££¤¤ '())�%6%(*�+024�3(*(2,)�&2,*04)$�(**�-024$�62�4)76$&%�(%�%))�.(2/̄0î1îÖ×Ö2

3	+(»́�Ö×ÖÖ�R�µ�¼·k���́lµ¶ »́�Ö×Ö2�R�µ�¼·k�́lµ¶ »́�Ö×Ö0�R�µ�¼·k�́lµ¶

4<%!�<=�4<��5z�}�=.,<=�6.#�z~���à!,"�z~7�9<�<9%<�/<���8!,/<�9:��;:9�<9/#<�4<�:/-,!:��5����=.,<=�*-=-�,��}}}�9<><9��,:� :.9=�=!9<+,!:��,:��.!�,.!��.�z|7�9<�<9%<�/<%</�.��-.//#:�

?@ABACDEFGFHIJD?KGL

�*��.�:-�,�<�,. /!�"<=� #� :.9=�=!9<+,!:��,:��.%<�>:9�/:�=M,<9��+.$!,./�<N$<�=!,-9<��� /=={�<O-!$�<�,{�=.,. .�<�:����4<�:�5z|��=.,<=�~������zP�4<�:�5z�~�=.,<=�����z����Q;-�=��,".,�.9<�"</=�!��:-9� .�R�.++:-�,�à!,"�8"-9�,:��S:-�,#�89<.�-9<9T��U>>!+<:�U4S**�".��:�<�>-�=�à!,"�8"-9�,:��S:-�,#�.�=�!��9<><99<=�,:�.��,"<�VW<�<9./�;-�=V:



�����������	
������	�����������	�	��������	��������������� !"	#$!%	&'&(	�) "*+$�	,-$	./""/0�)1	2!�),$)!) $	!)+	"$!�$-/"+	�23%/4$2$),�5 6��������7$!�$-/"+5�8� 931%!+$	/"+$�,	:;<=	*)�,	�)	>,$	?@'@	!)+	?@'& &AB'''C								�8� D$0	>�+�)1	EF!�,	G!""B	>/*,-	0!""	 /23"$,$+	>$3,	&'@HI @'B'''										�8��� J!�),	$K,$%�/%	EL	0!""�B	�/*,-	0!""	 /23"$,$+	�)	>$3,	&'@HI @MB'''										 M&B'''C									N!�),$)!) $5� >*)%��$	J$�,	=/),%/"B	!))*!"	 /),%! , 	C									@B@''	� <�%	:!)+"$%�B	!))*!"	 /),%! ,	:;<=B	2!�),$)!) $	3!%,� (B'''												� 1%!4$"	3!%O�)1	"/,	 AM'															� 3!�),	�),$%�/%	0!""�	E /3�$%	%//2B	 /).$%$) $	%//2I (''															� $"$ ,%� !"B	3"*2P�)1B	�2!""	%$3"! $2$),�B	2�� $""!)$/*�	2!�),$)!) $	E+//%	 "/�$%�I &B&M'												�  "$!)	!)+	3!�),	$K,$%�/%	-!)+	%!�"�	E$!�,	��+$	�,!�%0$""B	0$�,	��+$	>,$	Q	$),%!) $I M''															� %//.	2!�),$)!) $	EN!R	S	>$3,$2P$%I TM'															� 0�)+/0	 "$!)�)1 (''															� %$3"! $	."//%�)1	�)	%$�,%//2�	E$�,U	(VW	."//%�I MBL''												� "!)+� !3$	2!�),$)!) $	E,//"�V3%$��*%$	0!�-$%B	."/0$%�B	1%/*+	 /4$%B	P!%OB	�*33"�$�I @BM''												 @AB'M'C									XYZ[\[]								\�̂�_[_̀



��������������	
	��	�����	���	��������	
���	���	��	������������  ��!"� #$%%$&'%( &)�*+,� -./0�1�2"���&'%3 3&34�������516/ %/7�58�/"�9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'%(�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%3�������  ��!"� #$%'$&'%3 %@A)�*+,� -./0�1�2"���&'%# 3&34�������516/ &>��58�/"9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'%3�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%#�������  ��!"� #$A$&'%# %@()�*+,� -./0�1�2"���&'%B 3&34�������516/ ?���58�/"9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'%#�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%B�������  ��!"� 3$%'$&'%B %@B)�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'%A 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'%B�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%A�������  ��!"� #$%?$&'%A ?@')�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'%D 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'%A=�;6>"�?'<�&'%D�������  ��!"� #$%&$&'%D &@D)�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&' 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'%D=�;6>"�?'<�&'&'�������  ��!"� 3$%?$&'&' %@3)�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&% 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'&'=�;6>"�?'<�&'&%�������  ��!"� #$D$&'&% %@()�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&& 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'&%=�;6>"�?'<�&'&&�������  ��!"� #$A$&'&& (@')�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&? 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'&&=�;6>"�?'<�&'&?�������  ��!"� 5">�.>E -./0�1�2"���&'&( 3&34�������FG 1"G">7�9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'&?=�;6>"�?'<�&'&(



����������	
������
������
����
�������������� ����
� ����
� ����
� ����
� ����
 ����
� ����
! ����
" ����
# ����
$ ����
% $&
�'�(���� 	)*	+ 	),-* 	)-�, 	)+./ *)/�� *)�.	 *)	0� *)*+* *).,0 *)+0* ,)//0 ������
�(��1)
��2'�'�����'3�
���'������0 	)-,. *)�/0 *)/,0 *)0/- *)	.- *),	� *)-// *)+-, ,)/,* ,)0*� ,)*	/ 4�	 *)�*. *)	/* *)*.. *).		 *)+/. ,)�+	 ,)�.. ,)	,* ,),*+ ,)-*+ .)�,* �'�
5��('�6
����'�('��
/�* *),.. *)-	. ,)��0 ,)��0 ,)0+� ,)*-/ ,)..+ ,)+-� .)/+/ .)	�. .),�+ 4�, ,)/-- ,)0.	 ,)*,* ,).,� ,)+,* .)/.	 .)0-+ .),/� .)-0+ -)�.	 -)0/, �'�
5��('�6
����'�('��
��. ,).	* ,)+	. .)/*, .)0.� .)*+� .)-/+ -)�*	 -)�+* -)*		 -)-�/ +)�,* �22��'���'��
7��8)
�99'��
7��8
�- .)0*� .)*.0 .)-�� -)�0	 -)�.* -)*�0 -)..+ +)�	� +)0/0 +)*+0 +)--� #:
�6���2�
��28)
�5�
0)
 ��'����
/�+ -)�-. -)00� -)*.+ -)-0. +)/�� +)0.* +),*, +)+	, /�)�		 /�)**� /�)-,- ��
�'�
7�'��'��
����'�(8)
 ��'����
�
0� -)-+, +)/,0 +)	0- +).�/ /�)�/0 /�)0/0 /�),�� /�)+	/ //)�,+ //),�. //)+** �'�8
���3'���
7��8)
�2�(8
���3�8)
 ��'����'��
���3�80/ +).-, /�)�-� /�)0-� /�),+0 //)�/	 //)0	* //),-* /�)�0, /�)0+. /�).,+ /0)/*� �2�('����
7��8)
 ��'����'��
7��8
0� /�).,	 //)�-. //)	�� //).,� /�)//* /�)	.- /�)-*0 /0)�0- /0),0, /	)�	* /	)	,, 4��9(����;
	<
��(��6
��=���2���
>9�
�����	?
//
�����)
3�����
+
0<
&��@���
���A
���� �*�0���0
(2A
���A�
����
 
�
�A�
*��A
�������'(�
9
�A�
2��1��



 

Agricultural Burning Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
 
Agricultural Burn Permit Fee – ORCAA Rule 3.4(a)*  

 

Fee Minimum Fee Variable Fee 

Field Burning $37.50 for the first 10 acres $3.75 for each additional acre 

Spot Burning $37.50 for 10 acres or less None 

Pile Burning $80 for the first 80 tons $1.00 for each additional ton 

*These fees are exempt from Resolution 268. 



 

Asbestos and Demolition Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
Asbestos and Demolition Fees – ORCAA Rule 3.5(b) 

 
ASBESTOS PROJECT Notification Fee 

Single Family Residential $      4244 

10  259 linear feet or 48  159 square feet $    179190 

260  999 linear feet or 160  4,999 square feet $    387411 

1,000  9,999 linear feet or 5,000  49,999 square feet $    774822 

10,000+ linear feet or 50,000+ square feet $  15471645 

Annual Notification (limited to 260 linear feet or 160 square 
feet maximum) 

$    595633 

Emergency $      6063 

   plus notification fee 
 
 

 
DEMOLITION PROJECT Notification Fee 

Single Family Residents (AHERA Survey Required) $      4244 

Commercial Structure (AHERA Survey Required) $      7176 

Emergency Project $      6063 

plus notification fee 
 
 



 

Land Clearing Burning Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
 
 

Land Clearing Burning Permit Fee – ORCAA Rule 3.4(b) 
 

The Land Clearing Burn Permit fee shall be $119 127 for one acre or less. For greater than 

one acre, the fee will be $119 127 per acre cleared, rounded to the nearest full acre. 

 



Notice of Construction (NOC) Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 

NOC Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.3(a) 
 Filing Fee 
+  Additional NOC Processing Fees 
+  Other Costs 

NOC Fee 

 
Filing Fee - ORCAA Rule 3.3(b) 

Complexity Fee 
+  Equipment Fee(s) (for each piece of equipment, unless they are identical per 3.3(b)(2) 

Filing Fee 
 

Complexity Fee 
Complexity Level 1 $ 12031279 

Complexity Level 21 $ 24082560 

Complexity Level 31 $ 40274281 

Complexity Level 41 $ 974410358 

 
Equipment Fee 

Equipment/Activity Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Abrasive Blasting $     462491 5 

Asphalt Plant   $   34243639 37 

Combustion Equipment not otherwise listed (Million Btu/hr heat input at design capacity) 

    Less than 10  $   11101180 12 

    10 or more but less than 30 $   12031279 13 

    30 or more but less than 100 $   24052557 26 

    More than 100  $   64786886 70 

    Temporary Combustion Equipment (Onsite < 1 year) 
One half the filing 

fee  
One half the base-

fee hours 

Coffee Roaster $     647688 7 

Composting Operation (Average material throughput – 
tons per day)   

    Less than 50 $   12031279 13 

    50 or more but less than 200 $   21282262 23 

    More than 200 $   31463345 34 

Concrete Batch Plant $   18511967 20 

Crematory $     10181082 11 

Dry Cleaner (per machine) $     647688 7 

Dry Kilns $   12031279 13 

Emergency Engine – cumulative horsepower < 2000 bhp $     832885 9 

Emergency Engine -cumulative horsepower > 2000 bhp $   16651770 18 

Non-Emergency Engine (per engine) $   12031279 13 

Gasoline Dispensing Station $     647688 7 

Log yard $     647688 7 



Printing $     647688 7 

Process Equipment <20,000 cubic feet per minute at 
design capacity $     984926 10 

Rock Crushing Plant – includes General Order $     462491 5 

Soil Remediation $   12031279 13 

Spray Painting – Autobody (per operation/booth) $     740786 8 

Surface Coating – Aviation, Wood, Truck Bed Lining, Boat, 
Other (per operation/booth) $   12961378 14 

Storage Tanks <10,000-gallon total capacity (other than 
at retail gasoline dispensing stations) $     832885 9 

Wastewater Treatment Plant $   19432065 21 

Welding $     926984 10 

Other Equipment not listed above - Small2 $     462491 5 

Other Equipment not listed above - Medium2 $   12961377 14 

Other Equipment not listed above - Large2 $   31463345 34 

Equipment Modification - Modification as defined in 
ORCAA Rule 1.43 are physical changes or changes in the 
method of operation that may cause an emissions 
increase 

One half the 
applicable 

Applicable filing fee 
except that 

Complexity Fee is 
divided by two   

One half the 
associated 

baseBase-fee 
hours based on 

associated 
equipment fee(s) 

In-Kind Replacements – Rreplacement of equipment with 
a unit of same or smaller size and, combusting the same 
or cleaner fuel (if applicable). This fee reduction does not 
apply to except for asphalt plants, combustion equipment 
>30 MMBtu/hr, and or other replacements at the 
discretion of as determined by the Executive Director. 

One half the 
applicable filing fee 

One half the 
associated base-

fee hours 

 

Control Device Replacement/Change in Conditions (No Complexity Fee) 

Equipment/Activity Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Control Device Replacement per ORCAA Rule 6.1.10 NOC $   740786 8 

Change in Conditions per ORCAA Rule 6.1.114 NOC $  688 7 

 

Change in Conditions Per Rule 6.1.114 (No Complexity Fee) 

Equipment/Activity Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Change in Conditions  $   647 7 

 

Additional NOC Processing Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.3(c) 
Additional NOC Processing fees, including work that exceeds the base-fee hours, will be billed at the 
following hourly rate as specified in ORCAA Rule 3.3(d). 

Hourly Rate $  92.5398.36 

 

Other Costs - ORCAA Rule 3.3(d) 
Publishing and consulting costs incurred will be billed to the applicant as specified in ORCAA Rule 3.3(d). 

 

Variance - per ORCAA Rule 2.3, Compliance Schedule per ORCAA Rule 2.6(f), or 
Voluntary Limit per Rule 6.1.12Restricting the Potential to Emit per ORCAA Rule 



5.3 (SMO) 

Fees Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Filing Fee $   12961377 14 

Add’l processing costs above allowed hours – per hour $  92.5398.36  

Actual legal notice fees Actual cost  

Actual ORCAA legal fees  Actual cost  

 
1Complexity – Level 1, Level 2, Level 3 and Level 4 
The following includes equipment that would be considered in each permit complexity class if installed 
by themselves. If the application includes more than one piece of equipment/process or if your 
equipment/process is not listed, please contact ORCAA Engineering Department for a complexity 
determination for your project. 
 
Level 1 
Abrasive Blasting 
Coffee Roaster 
Dry Cleaner 
Emergency Engine <2000bhp 
Gasoline Dispensing Facilities 
Rock Crushing Plant 
Spray Painting – Autobody 
Storage Tanks <10,000-gallon capacity - 
excluding gasoline dispensing facilities 
 
Level 2 
Combustion Equipment <30 MMBtu/hr 
Compost <50 ton/day 
Cremator 
Emergency Engine >2000bhp 
Non-Emergency Engine 
Process Equipment 
Soil Remediation 
Surface Coating (excluding autobody) 
Welding 

Level 3 
Combustion Equipment 30-100 MMBtu/hr 
Compost 50-200 tons/day 
 
 
Level 4 
Asphalt Plant 
Combustion Equipment >100 MMBtu/hr 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2Equipment fees for other equipment not classified above is determined based on the size and the type 
of the unit. Please contact ORCAA Engineering Department for assistance.  
 
3Per Rule 1.4, a “Modification” means any physical change in, or change in method of operation of, a 

stationary source that increases the amount of any air contaminant emitted by such stationary source or 

that result in the emissions of any air contaminant not previously emitted. 

4Changes in Conditions that will result in an emissions increase are reviewed as a “modification” 

 



 

 

 
Notice of Intent (NOI) Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
 

NOI Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.6(a) 
Category Fee 

Asphalt Plant $   36603892 

Boiler $   10711138 

Concrete Batch Plants $     701745 

Nonroad Engines $     9781040 

Rock Crushers $  1256 1335  

Other Equipment Not Classified Above  $    10001064 

 
 

NOI Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.6(a) – Exemption under ORCAA Rule 6.4(a)(2) 
Stationary source qualifying for exemption from New Source Review under 
ORCAA Rule 6.1(b)(2)  $     555590 

Additional processing costs exceeding 6 hours for sources submitting an NOI for 
exemption under ORCAA Rule 6.1(b)(2) who request assistance with 
documenting the stationary source’s potential to emit 

$ 
92.5398.36/hr 

 
 

NOI Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.6(a) – Exemption under ORCAA Rule 6.4(a)(3) 
Gasoline Dispensing Facilities qualifying for exemption from New Source Review 
under ORCAA Rule 6.1(b)(3)  $    277295 

 



Olympic Region Clean Air Agency Fee Schedules 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 

Registration Fee Schedule 
 

 

Registration Fee  ORCAA Rule 3.1 (b) 
Registration Class (RC) Registration Class Fee Amount Emission Fee 

RC1 $  19342056 $  60 63 per ton 

RC2 $  17261835 $  60 63 per ton 

RC3 $  15471645 $  60 63 per ton 

RC4 $    714759 N/A 

RC5 $    286304 N/A 

 

 

Reinspection fee ORCAA Rule 3.1(i) 
 

Reinspection fee     $119 127 per inspection 



0.924

population per capita

CLALLAM COUNTY

unincorporated 45,850 $42,365.40

Forks 3,360 $3,104.64

Port Angeles 20,200 $18,664.80

Sequim 8,215 $7,590.66

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

unincorporated 29,125 $26,911.50

Aberdeen 17,040 $15,744.96

Cosmopolis 1,665 $1,538.46

Elma 3,460 $3,197.04

Hoquiam 8,785 $8,117.34

McCleary 2,040 $1,884.96

Montesano 4,150 $3,834.60

Oakville 720 $665.28

Ocean Shores 7,160 $6,615.84

Westport 2,255 $2,083.62
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY

unincorporated 23,060 $21,307.44

Port Townsend 10,290 $9,507.96
 

MASON COUNTY  

unincorporated 55,770 $51,531.48

Shelton 10,430 $9,637.32
 

PACIFIC COUNTY  

unincorporated 15,960 $14,747.04

Ilwaco 1,100 $1,016.40

Long Beach 1,715 $1,584.66

Raymond 3,090 $2,855.16

SouthBend 1,735 $1,603.14

THURSTON COUNTY

unincorporated 143,760 $132,834.24

Bucoda 610 $563.64

Lacey 58,180 $53,758.32

Olympia 56,370 $52,085.88

Rainier 2,510 $2,319.24

Tenino 2,030 $1,875.72

Tumwater 26,360 $24,356.64

Yelm 10,680 $9,868.32

TOTALS 577,675 $533,771.70

Assessments for Fiscal Year 2024

based on 2022 population









Inspections Completed
Between 4/6/2023 and 5/5/2023

Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

BTD
04/12/2023 COOPER POINT CHEVRON1258Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/12/2023 HOEYS AUTOBODY293Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/13/2023 BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS1215Full Compliance Evaluation SHELTON

04/13/2023 MR OAK ANTIQUES777Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/17/2023 CHEVRON #99975 - MARVIN996Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/17/2023 LACEY DOOR AND MILLWORK795Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/17/2023 COSTCO GASOLINE #740 - LACEY612Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/17/2023 GERBER COLLISION & GLASS - LACEY894Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/21/2023 CITY OF OLYMPIA - EASTSIDE ST - GA821Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/21/2023 CITY OF LACEY - LACEY BLVD - GAS272Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/21/2023 KLOECKNER METALS CORPORATION1234Driveby TUMWATER

04/21/2023 GERBERS COLLISION & GLASS - TUM728Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

04/21/2023 ROYAL MART 1021007Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/21/2023 ROGNLIN MARINE550Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/24/2023 COVABRELLI COFFEE LLC313Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

04/27/2023 ADVANCED PREFINISH786Driveby TUMWATER

04/27/2023 CITY OF TUMWATER - KIMMIE ST - GE203Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

04/27/2023 7456 CORPORATION501Full Compliance Evaluation ROCHESTER

04/27/2023 STELLA JONES CORPORATION - ROCH372Full Compliance Evaluation ROCHESTER

04/27/2023 CITY OF TUMWATER - NEW MARKET -1212Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

04/27/2023 COOKE AQUA CULTURE PACIFIC LLC404Full Compliance Evaluation ROCHESTER

04/27/2023 PALERMO WELLFIELD136Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

04/27/2023 KLOECKNER METALS CORPORATION1234Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/02/2023 WILLIS ENTERPRISES - BELFAIR1030Full Compliance Evaluation BELFAIR

Page 1 of 3Printed 5/5/2023 3:45:50 PM

1



Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

JAD
04/06/2023 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Source Test OLYMPIA

05/04/2023 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Source Test OLYMPIA

05/04/2023 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Partial Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

MS
04/18/2023 MCKINLEY PAPER COMPANY153Source Test PORT ANGELES

04/19/2023 MCKINLEY PAPER COMPANY153Source Test PORT ANGELES

05/04/2023 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Partial Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/04/2023 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Source Test OLYMPIA

NWS
04/10/2023 HOME DEPOT #5832 - LACEY578Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/19/2023 WHOLE FOODS MARKET682Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/19/2023 SNOW JOE896Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/19/2023 WSDOT - OLYMPIC REGION440Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/19/2023 LACEY COLLISION CENTER INC721Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

04/27/2023 SAINT PETERS HOSPITAL439Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/27/2023 GRAPHIC COMMUNICATIONS141Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/27/2023 GERBER COLLISION & GLASS - OLYM779Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

04/27/2023 M & S COLLISION117Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/03/2023 GEORGIA PACIFIC CORRUGATED LLC295Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

RDW
04/06/2023 CROWN CORK & SEAL CO INC152Source Test OLYMPIA

04/19/2023 MCKINLEY PAPER COMPANY153Source Test PORT ANGELES

04/20/2023 MCKINLEY PAPER COMPANY153Source Test PORT ANGELES

04/20/2023 EVERGREEN COLLISION - FRONT ST738Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

04/20/2023 MT PLEASANT VILLAGE & 76334Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

04/24/2023 COVABRELLI COFFEE LLC313Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

04/26/2023 VILLAGE MART890Partial Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

Page 2 of 3Printed 5/5/2023 3:45:51 PM

2



Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

04/28/2023 CHEVRON #90956-TROSPER991Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/03/2023 GEORGIA PACIFIC CORRUGATED LLC295Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/05/2023 OLYMPIC CHEVRON882Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

05/05/2023 BERGSTROM FOUNDRY716Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

05/05/2023 CUSTOM FIBERGLASS409Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

05/05/2023 GATEWAY 76 #850199Full Compliance Evaluation ELMA

05/05/2023 BP #7145 ARCO ABERDEEN841Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

Page 3 of 3Printed 5/5/2023 3:45:51 PM

3



Asbestos Permit Status Report

Permit # Site Address County Completion DateRec'd

22ASB008003 50350 Hwy 112 7/7/2023Clallam6/20/2022

22ASB008068 	422 East Bay Dr NE 9/6/2023Thurston8/24/2022

22ASB008162 Washington St, Rice St, and mile m 8/31/2023Clallam11/17/2022

22ASB008168 101 E Railroad 1/31/2023Clallam11/23/2022

22ASB008169 101 E Market St 12/30/2022Grays Harbor11/23/2022

22ASB008185 Annual 12/31/202312/12/2022

22ASB008187 1835 Circle Loop SE 1/12/2024Thurston12/13/2022

22ASB008188 Annual 12/30/2023Clallam12/13/2022

22ASB008205 	7219 Glen Annie Ln SW 1/11/2023Thurston12/30/2022

23ASB008207 Annual 12/29/2023Jefferson1/3/2023

23ASB008208 100 Mill Rd 12/29/2023Jefferson1/3/2023

23ASB008216 1113 Legion Way SE 2/28/2023Thurston1/11/2023

23ASB008219 	Communication Tower-Tonquin Ave 1/30/2023Grays Harbor1/13/2023

23ASB008241 	1507 Center St 2/4/2023Mason2/1/2023

23ASB008246 8924 Mulberry Ct SE 5/13/2023Thurston2/3/2023

23ASB008248 101 NE Byerly Rd 12/31/2023Mason2/6/2023

23ASB008258 2033 1st Street 12/31/2023Grays Harbor2/13/2023

23ASB008261 	700 Israel Rd SW 6/30/2023Thurston2/16/2023

23ASB008267 215 Sid Snyder Ave SW 3/17/2023Thurston2/17/2023

23ASB008270 31402 H St 12/31/2023Pacific2/13/2023

23ASB008274 425 Marvin Rd SE (Parcel #118141 4/7/2023Thurston2/24/2023

23ASB008278 1322 Washington Street 5/27/2023Jefferson2/27/2023

23ASB008281 2828 Martin Way E 4/28/2023Thurston3/1/2023

23ASB008283 6729 Henderson Blvd SE 4/29/2023Thurston3/2/2023

23ASB008290 216 North G St. 5/31/2023Grays Harbor3/7/2023

23ASB008298 5201 Capitol Blvd S 4/7/2023Thurston3/14/2023

23ASB008302 170 Beach Dr 4/12/2023Jefferson3/15/2023

23ASB008303 936 Fir Street 4/25/2023Jefferson3/15/2023

23ASB008311 7217 85th Ln SE 4/13/2023Thurston3/23/2023

23ASB008312 1320 Columbia St 4/11/2023Clallam3/23/2023

23ASB008317 40 E Rose Point 4/17/2023Mason3/27/2023

23ASB008319 3930 Westpark Ct NW 4/10/2023Thurston3/28/2023

23ASB008321 1940 49th St 4/7/2023Jefferson3/29/2023

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 1 of 2

4



Permit # Site Address County Completion DateRec'd

23ASB008322 221 Colman Dr 5/12/2023Jefferson4/3/2023

23ASB008323 13310 W Shelton Matlock Rd 4/29/2023Mason4/5/2023

23ASB008325 1610 Prospect Ave NE 4/17/2023Thurston4/6/2023

23ASB008326 634 89th Ave SW 4/20/2023Thurston4/6/2023

23ASB008327 1409 Laurel 4/21/2023Grays Harbor4/6/2023

23ASB008328 776 Rockney Pl 4/27/2023Grays Harbor4/6/2023

23ASB008329 545 Hendricks St 4/10/2023Jefferson4/6/2023

23ASB008331 3002 Mt Angeles Rd 5/9/2023Clallam4/7/2023

23ASB008332 7414 Fair Oakes Loop SE 4/15/2023Thurston4/7/2023

23ASB008333 7821 Martin Way East 4/28/2023Thurston4/7/2023

23ASB008334 1170 SE Cole Rd 5/5/2023Mason4/10/2023

23ASB008335 1678 SR 105 8/31/2023Grays Harbor4/11/2023

23ASB008336 927 Duffy St 4/19/2023Grays Harbor4/14/2023

23ASB008337 2810 Ruddell Rd SE 4/26/2023Thurston4/14/2023

23ASB008342 4874 Pacific Ave 4/27/2023Grays Harbor4/17/2023

23ASB008343 418 Broadway Ave 4/25/2023Pacific4/17/2023

23ASB008344 1411 W Young St 5/5/2023Grays Harbor4/19/2023

23ASB008345 5505 Clearfield Dr SW 5/10/2023Thurston4/19/2023

23ASB008346 16921 Port Orford Blvd SE 4/21/2023Thurston4/20/2023

23ASB008347 636 J St 5/10/2023Jefferson4/21/2023

23ASB008348 917 Solki Rd 5/5/2023Grays Harbor4/24/2023

23ASB008349 526 Pattison St SE 5/31/2023Thurston4/24/2023

23ASB008350 9224 James Rd SW 5/1/2023Grays Harbor4/27/2023

23ASB008351 215 North G Street 5/10/2023Grays Harbor4/27/2023

23ASB008352 303 S 5th Ave Unit C-17 5/5/2023Clallam4/28/2023

23ASB008353 1215 Boone st. SE 5/12/2023Thurston4/29/2023

23ASB008354 1215 7th Ave. SW. 5/26/2023Thurston5/1/2023

23ASB008355 28 3rd St South 5/16/2023Grays Harbor5/1/2023

23ASB008356 303 Mill Rd 5/18/2023Clallam5/1/2023

23ASB008357 3 Evergreen Lane 9/30/2023Grays Harbor5/2/2023

23ASB008358 224 State Route 6 5/4/2023Pacific5/3/2023

23ASB008359 524 East 1st St 5/17/2023Clallam5/4/2023

23ASB008360 100 W Broadway Avenue 12/29/2023Grays Harbor5/4/2023

23ASB008361 21110 North US Hwy 101 5/8/2023Mason5/5/2023

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 2 of 2

5



Demolition Notifications received between 4/6/2023 and 5/5/2023

Permit# Address City Status Asb Survey Asb Permit #Rec'd Staff

23DEM006720 29303 Joy Lane4/10/2023 Ocean Park ASB

23DEM006721 161 SE Picadilly Dr4/10/2023 Shelton ASB

23DEM006722 8535 Viewcrest Lane SE4/11/2023 Olympia ASB

23DEM006723 425 Ellis St Called FD to follow up with training f4/11/2023 Raymond ASBBTD

23DEM006724 1678 SR 1054/11/2023 Grayland 23ASB008335

23DEM006725 4840 Harrison Ave NW Start date not 10 days. Pd ER fee? 4/13/2023 Olympia ASBBTD

23DEM006726 230 NE Pederson Dr4/13/2023 Belfair ASB

23DEM006727 71 E Christmas Tree Place4/17/2023 Belfair ASB

23DEM006728 6729 Henderson Blvd SE4/19/2023 Olympia 23ASB008283BTD

23DEM006729 220 E Misty Acres LN ER Req't - Letter & Fee rec'd.4/19/2023 Union ASBBTD

23DEM006730 3230 Front Lane after the fact start date originally 2/24/20/2023 Tokeland ASBBTD

23DEM006731 526 Pattison St SE#################### Olympia ASB

23DEM006732 7821 Martin Way East4/26/2023 Olympia 23ASB008333BTD

23DEM006733 303 Mill Rd5/1/2023 Sequim 23ASB008356

23DEM006734 3 Evergreen Lane5/3/2023 Montesano 23ASB008357

23DEM006735 3349 36th Ave NW Walk in applikcation and payment 5/3/2023 Olympia ASBBTD

23DEM006736 204 E. FRONT STREET5/3/2023 PORT ANGELE ASB

23DEM006737 204 E. FRONT STREET Duplicate of 23DEMOO67365/3/2023 PORT ANGELE ASB

23DEM006738 107 7th Avenue SE5/4/2023 OLYMPIA ASB

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 1 of 1

6



Current ORCAA Land Clearing Burn Permits

Expiration # Burn Site Address CityFireDistrict

5/12/2023 5741 	1081 Wentworth Rd ForksCFD #1, Forks/Beaver

5/17/2023 5744 337 Louella Rd SequimCFD #3, Sequim

5/19/2023 5748 303 Dell Ray Dr Sequim

6/2/2023 5767 162 Heron Hill Road Sequim

6/4/2023 5773 25 Spotted Owl Lane Sequim

5/10/2023 5735 1453 Freshwater Bay Road Port AngelesCFD #4, Joyce

5/25/2023 5755 1643 Joyce-Piedmont Rd Port Angeles

5/6/2023 5731 102 Elwha Bluff Rd  Port AngeleClallam County Fire District #2

5/10/2023 5734 193 S Tara Ln Port Angeles

5/11/2023 5738 4118 South Bean Road Port Angeles

6/2/2023 5764 240794 W Hwy 101 Pt, Angeles

5/14/2023 5743 	17 Western Ln OakvilleGHFD #1, Oakville

6/1/2023 5766 60 Couch Rd Oakville

5/11/2023 5736 	49 E Mox Chehalis Rd McClearyGHFD #12, McCleary

5/12/2023 5739 580 Lillie Road ElmaGHFD #2, Central Park - Brady

5/17/2023 5745 76 Barrett Road N Montesano

6/2/2023 5768 38 Raspberry rd ElmaGHFD #5, Porter/Elma/Satsop

5/21/2023 5750 	720 Jack Salmon Ln IlwacoIlwaco Fire Department

5/25/2023 5757 310 Luttrell Ln ChinookPFD #2, Chinook Valley

5/13/2023 5742 2205 SR 105 AberdeenSBRFA (Districts #3, 11, 14)

5/25/2023 5756 17622 Keith Ln RochesterTFD #1, Rochester

6/4/2023 5772 7729 101st LN SW Olympia

5/5/2023 5728 	5735 Maytown Rd SW OlympiaTFD #11, Littlerock

5/5/2023 5730 	237 Wright Rd Tenino

5/24/2023 5753 8427 Charmont Lane SW Olympia

5/27/2023 5758 11424 Case Ext Rd SW Olympia

6/3/2023 5769 4737 113th Ave SW Olympia,

6/4/2023 5771 7123 115th Ave SW Olympia

5/24/2023 5754 17620 Northcraft Rd SE TeninoTFD #12, Tenino

5/11/2023 5737 9036 Salty Dr NW OlympiaTFD #13, Griffin

5/17/2023 5746 	20331 167th Ln SE YelmTFD #17, Bald Hills

5/28/2023 5759 	12220 Hillcrest Drive Se Yelm

5/19/2023 5747 16320 Lawrence Lake Rd SE YelmTFD #2, Yelm

6/3/2023 5770 15503 123rd Ave SE Yelm

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 1 of 2

7



Expiration # Burn Site Address CityFireDistrict

5/7/2023 5733 5915 Waldrick Rd SE TeninoTFD #6, East Olympia

5/28/2023 5760 6424 Waldrick Rd SE Tenino

5/24/2023 5752 3809 Schincke Rd NE OlympiaTFD #8, South Bay

6/1/2023 5765 	6220 Swayne RD Olympia

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 2 of 2

8



Complaint Report for period from 4/6/2023 to 5/5/2023

Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

ClallamCounty:

04/07/2023 WESTPORT LLC - INTERIOR 
#474

PORT 
ANGELES

NWS

04/07/2023 WESTPORT LLC - INTERIOR PORT 
ANGELES

NWS

04/15/2023 Unknown PORT 
ANGELES

JW

04/15/2023 Hunter and Lesly Burrows Port Angeles JW

04/18/2023 Unknown Sequim RDW

04/19/2023 Gary and Robin Ross Sequim TDF

04/20/2023 Finishing Touch Landscape - Jeff 
Ledgerwood

Port Angeles MS

04/20/2023 Finishing Touch Landscape - Jeff 
Ledgerwood

Port Angeles MS

04/21/2023 Unknown Port Angeles JW

04/21/2023 Unknown PORT 
ANGELES

JW

04/22/2023 Neighbor (possibly HUNTER AND 
LESLY BURROWS)

Port Angeles JW

04/23/2023 Unknown PORT 
ANGELES

JW

04/24/2023 Country Aire Inc Port Angeles BTD

04/25/2023 Jim Guindon Port Angeles NWS

04/26/2023 HUNTER BURROWS Port Angeles TDF

04/26/2023 Neighbor (Hunter Burrows) Port Angeles RDW

04/27/2023 Unknown Port Angeles JW

04/28/2023 Neighbor (Hunter Burrows) Port Angeles

04/30/2023 Hunter Burrows Port Angeles TDF

04/30/2023 Neighbor / Hunter Burrows Port Angeles TDF

Grays HarborCounty:

04/11/2023 Brogan Companies McCleary NWS

05/01/2023 PACIFIC VENEER ABERDEEN RDW

JeffersonCounty:

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 1 of 5

9



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

04/10/2023 Timothy Reandeau or Patricia 
Reandeau

Port Townsend JW

05/02/2023 Keith Morris Quilcene BTD

05/03/2023 Keith Morris Quilcene TDF

05/03/2023 JERRALD L WEIDNER Port Hadlock TDF

05/04/2023 	JOHN ALLISON Port Hadlock RDW

MasonCounty:

04/12/2023 JENSON, DAVID A & LENNIE R Shelton garbage burningJW

04/29/2023 Unknown Shelton TDF

05/01/2023 Hood Canal Salmon Enhancement 
Group

BELFAIR MS

05/02/2023 Cascade Excavators, Inc / 
Northshore Storage LLC

BELFAIR BTD

05/03/2023 Enoch Mease Shelton BTD

PacificCounty:

04/06/2023 Elizabeth Ginther Raymond RTM

04/12/2023 Port of Willapa Harbor Tokeland BTD

04/16/2023 Bonnie Delanoy South Bend MS

05/02/2023 WOLDRICH, ALBERT & 
ANNEGRET/ROWE, STEVEN & 
MELISSA

Ocean Park NWS

05/03/2023 Donna Sybrant Ocean Park TDF

05/03/2023 Toxic brush tree burning with no 
permit

Ocean Park

05/03/2023 Toxic brush tree burning with no 
permit

Ocean Park

05/04/2023 Bryson Martin and Adria Mallot Raymond MS

05/04/2023 Bryson Martin and Adria Mallot Raymond MS

ThurstonCounty:

04/06/2023 DENNIS, ROSELIND Yelm RDW

04/06/2023 Rainier Rail Tenino RTM

04/06/2023 ROLLMAN, DON & ERIKA Olympia JW

04/06/2023 Contractor Olympia builders are 
burning scraps, 
saw dust, 
building 
materials, etc.

JW

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 2 of 5

10



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

04/07/2023 KHROMETS, VITALIY A & 
ANZHELA V

Olympia RDW

04/07/2023 ROBERTS, ADRIENNE Olympia RDW

04/07/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia JW

04/07/2023 Jason and Chelsea St George LACEY JW

04/09/2023 Dacus, Ronald E Rochester JW

04/10/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia RTM

04/11/2023 Unknown Lacey BTD

04/11/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia JW

04/11/2023 MERKL-FERNS, MARLOE Lacey Large outdoor 
fire of 
debris/constructi
on material

JW

04/14/2023 HARMON, TREVOR D & 
ROSALINDA ESTRADA

Rochester BTD

04/14/2023 Dacus, Ronald E Rochester JW

04/15/2023 RICHARD MCKINNON & 
CAROLYN CUMMINS

Olympia JW

04/17/2023 CARLOS, AUTUMN NICOLE 
RENEE

Yelm RDW

04/17/2023 WEST, GAIL C Yelm JW

04/18/2023 WALLWAY, DALE-LYNN & 
RANDY

Rainier Suspected Meth 
Lab causing lot 
fire with meth 
production.

RDW

04/18/2023 Jerry Foster Centralia JW

04/20/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia BTD

04/22/2023 Unknown Olympia JW

04/24/2023 HARRIS, MICHAEL Olympia RDW

04/25/2023 Victor and Carolyn Kalista Olympia debris pile-
potential burn 
site

NWS

04/25/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia JW

04/26/2023 FRANKOV, ALEKSANDR & 
TATIANA

Olympia RDW

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 3 of 5

11



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

04/26/2023 Re-New Excavation LLC Yelm TDF

04/26/2023 LIENING, SAMUEL Olympia RDW

04/27/2023 Outdoor Garbage Fires YELM TOXIC Burning 
outdoor pit 
garbage and 
toxic materials 
fires

RDW

04/28/2023 Unknown Lacey JW

04/28/2023 Re-New Excavation LLC Yelm

04/28/2023 Fire Tenino

04/29/2023 Tina Ballestrino & John Pemberton Lacey TDF

04/29/2023 Kai and Lauren Howard Yelm Harassing us 
over fire

TDF

04/30/2023 WEST, GAIL C Yelm TDF

04/30/2023 COLSON SAMPLEY, SARA Olympia RDW

05/01/2023 GIBSON, CALVIN D Yelm RDW

05/01/2023 GREEN, MARK D Olympia RDW

05/01/2023 Joseph Japhet Olympia MS

05/01/2023 Toxic smell of burning non burning 
materials

Yelm Burning/ 
removal of 
insulation/interior
s of vehicles

TDF

05/01/2023 Unknown Tumwater TDF

05/02/2023 JAMES, STEPHEN Olympia RDW

05/02/2023 Unknwon Tenino TDF

05/02/2023 LAWRENCE, PHYLLIS J Rochester Garbage -plasticTDF

05/02/2023 HARRIS, MICHAEL Olympia TDF

05/02/2023 HARRIS, MICHAEL Olympia TDF

05/03/2023 ROLLMAN, DON & ERIKA Olympia BTD

05/03/2023 TACO TIME // NELSON OLYMPIA 
LLC

Olympia RDW

05/03/2023 Valerie Sweeney Olympia TDF

05/03/2023 burning smoke Olympia

05/03/2023 toxic smoke from neighbors 
burning AGAIN

YELM TOXIC SmokeTDF

05/03/2023 Larry and Sue Beagley Trustees Olympia TDF

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 4 of 5

12



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

05/04/2023 BUCK, WILLIAM & LEE ANN Yelm RDW

05/04/2023 Jeff Roosa Olympia TDF

05/04/2023 Jeff Roosa Olympia TDF

05/04/2023 Jeff Roosa Olympia TDF

05/04/2023 KIMBALL, BRANDON P Yelm ParticalsTDF

05/05/2023 Joseph & Ann Panesko Lacey BTD

05/05/2023 TBD Olympia BTD

05/05/2023 Valerie Sweeney Olympia NWS

05/05/2023 ZHANG, SHAOFEN & EAGAN, 
JAMES M

Olympia NWS

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 5 of 5

13



NOV Monthly Report
For the period 4/6/2023 to 5/5/2023

Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

BERNDT4288 06/27/2022 $500.00THURSTON 4/19/2023Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

AUTO DEPOT4334 11/15/2022 $750.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 727 

MARINE DR PLANT

4337 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

ABERDEEN

4338 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

CARLSBORG 

CARDLOCK SEQUIM

4339 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - ELMA 

CARDLOCK

4340 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - FORKS 

BULK PLANT & CFN

4341 12/02/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - FORKS 

CARDLOCK

4342 12/02/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

HOQUIAM BULK

4343 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

HOQUIAM CFN

4344 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

MONTESANO CFN

4345 12/02/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

MONTESANO FARM & 

HOME

4346 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

MOTTMAN

4347 11/15/2022 $500.00THURSTON 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - OLD 

HWY 99

4348 11/15/2022 $500.00THURSTON 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT 

ANGELES

4349 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT 

ANGELES MARINE INC

4350 12/02/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT CFN4351 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - PORT 

TOWNSEND PLANT

4352 11/15/2022 $500.00JEFFERSON 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

14



Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

PETROCARD - 

RAYMOND

4353 11/28/2022 $500.00PACIFIC 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

RAYMOND CFN

4354 11/28/2022 $500.00PACIFIC 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - SHELTON4355 11/15/2022 $500.00MASON 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - SOUTH 

ABERDEEN 288

4356 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

SOUTHSIDE CFN

4357 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - TIRE 

TOWNE CFN

4358 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

TUMWATER CFN

4359 11/15/2022 $500.00CLALLAM 4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

WESTPORT

4360 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

PETROCARD - 

WESTPORT - BULK 

PLANT

4361 11/15/2022 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/18/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

TACC4377 12/02/2022 $500.00THURSTON 4/10/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

EMMICK4383 01/05/2023 $500.00THURSTON 4/13/2023Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

JIM CAMPBELL // MARY 

STILTON

4386 12/14/2022 $1,000.00THURSTON Rule 6.2.5(e) Use of Burn Barrel

Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

VESSEY & SONS4388 12/14/2022 $1,250.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/26/2023Rule 6.3.2(b) Demo without AHERA 

survey

Rule 6.3.4(a) asbestos/demo work without

notification/fee

MARCY LUNSFORD 

AND DAVID SHEETS

4393 11/16/2022 $1,000.00THURSTON 4/26/2023Rule 6.2.8(c)(4) Land clearing burn permit

J.M. KNELLEKEN

COMPANY, INC

4394 12/28/2022 $375.00THURSTON 4/12/2023Rule 6.3.4(a) asbestos/demo work without

notification/fee

DOMINIC, GAIL, & 

TAYLOR RIVAS

4398 01/23/2023 $1,000.00THURSTON 4/19/2023Rule 6.2.5(e) Use of Burn Barrel

Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

WEST4400 01/17/2023 $250.00CLALLAM 4/12/2023Rule 6.2.8(c)(4) Land clearing burn permit

FUELTRAC LLC4402 01/23/2023 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

4/12/2023Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

MCKINLEY PAPER 

COMPANY

4406 02/22/2023 $1,000.00CLALLAM 70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program -

Compliance

ROLLMAN4414 04/13/2023Rule 6.2.5(c) Person must be in 

attendance of fire

Rule 6.2.8(c)(3) Land Clearing burn

15



Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

BROGAN4417 04/11/2023GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 6.2.8(c)(3) Land Clearing burn

QFC FUEL CENTER 

#126 - LACEY

4419 04/12/2023THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

CARLOS & DUSTIN 

WRIGHT

4421 04/21/2023Rule 6.2.8(c)(3) Land Clearing burn

Total: $25,375.00

16



Explanation of Compliance Reports 

Common to all of these reports is the choice of “city” as the mailing address for the activity. 
 
Inspections Completed 
 

This report lists the initials * of the ORCAA inspector (or engineer), the date the inspection was 
achieved, the ORCAA file number, business name, and the nearest city for their location. 
 
  RTM – Robert Moody, Compliance Manager 
  MS – Mike Shults, Compliance Supervisor 
  RDW – Robert Wyland, Air Quality Specialist II 
  NWS – Nancy Wood Siglin, Air Quality Specialist II 
  BTD – Bryson Downs, Air Quality Specialist I 
  MVG – Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager 
  JAD – Jennifer DeMay, Engineering Supervisor 
  AM – Aaron Manley, Engineer II 
  LEW – Lauren Whybrew, Engineer I 
 
The ‘Inspection Type” column is a record of how the inspection was accomplished, or the purpose of the 
inspection. 

• Full Compliance Evaluation is selected when a complete on on-site inspection was achieved. 
This indicates there was a facility walk-through, equipment was checked, and records were 
reviewed. 

• Partial Compliance Evaluation is selected with an on- or off-site inspection was conducted that 
was not comprehensive (i.e. records review only). Many partial inspections can add up to a full 
inspection. This has been used more frequently since COVID. 

• Investigation is an on- or off-site examination of a specific parameter or issue. 

• Source Test is chosen when ORCAA is on-site to observe independent test companies as they 
audit a buisiness’ emissions. 

• Driveby is documentation that we have been to the business but did not enter the property. 
This code is used for following up on complaints (when no action is necessary) or checking up on 
businesses that have been problematic. 
 

Asbestos Permit Status Report 
 

The “Rec’d” is the date the permit was received at ORCAA. 

The “Site address” and “County” is the where the project is to occur. 

The “Completion Date” is proposed by the applicant stating when the project should be completed. 

 
Demolition Notifications Report 
 

Similar to the asbestos report, however because these notifications are good for an entire year, the list 
is long. 
 
Additional headings, different from the Asbestos Report include: 
The “Staff” indicates which staff person  



The “Address” and “City” is the where the project is to occur. 

The “Status” includes comments from staff handling the notification. The comments allow any inspector 

to follow up on any permit. 

The “Asb Survey” is a checkbox indicating whether ORCAA received an asbestos survey prior to the 

demolition. 

The “Asb Permit #” coincides with an asbestos project in our system for the same address. 
 

Current ORCAA Land Clearing Burn Permit 
 

This report contains active permits. 
 
The “FireDistrict#” is the district in which the burn will take place. 

The “Expiration” is the final date the permit is valid. 

The “#” is the permit number assigned by ORCAA. 

“Burn Site Address” and “City” is the location of the burn. 
 

Complaint Report 
 

These are alleged violations of air quality regulations. Not all have been investigated on-site by an 
ORCAA inspector. 
 
The “Source” references the alleged polluter, whether a business or individual 

The “City” is the where the alleged violation occurred 

The “Formal” checkbox is used to denote when a Formal Complaint has been received from the 

complainant. A Formal Complaint is a form that documents what occurred and is signed by the 

complainant and notarized. It includes details such as time of day, date, health impacts, and 

authorization to release the complainants name during the investigation. 

The “Online” checkbox is used to document complaints that have been submitted via email. 

The check boxes for smoke, odor, open fire, dust, woodstove, asbestos/demo, marijuana, and other 
are used to characterize the nature of the complaint. 
 

NOV Monthly Report 
 

This is a list of Notices of Violation (NOV) that had action during the reporting period. Action items may 
include the issuance of the NOV, issuance of the penalty amount (by law we must wait at least 30 days 
from the issuance of an NOV to assess a penalty) or show a penalty has been paid. 



Industrial / Commercial Air Permits
Pending and Final Permits for period from 04/06/2023 to 05/05/2023

Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

FORKS 
COMMUNITY 
HOSPITAL

FORKS Replacement of (2) 
4 MMbtu/hr diesel-
fired boilers. 
Emissions are not 
expected to 
increase, but 
include NOx, CO, 
PM, SO2, HAP and 
TAP.

10/12/2022Medical Facility LEWNOC 22NOC1577 4/10/2023final permit delivered

PANELTECH HOQUIAM Store polyvinyl 
acetate (PVAc) in 
an existing tank.

3/7/2023Printing/Paper 
Products

JADNOI 23NOI1590 4/13/2023final permit delivered

PEPSI NORTHWEST 
BEVERAGES LLC

TUMWATE
R

Increase the 
permitted 
emissions limit for 
isopropyl alcohol, a 
regulated toxic air 
pollutant. No other 
emissions are 
expected to 
increase as a result 
of this proposal.

2/6/2023Food 
Processing

LEWNOC 23NOC1585 4/10/2023final permit delivered

STABI-CRAFT 
MARINE USA INC

PORT 
ANGELES

Establish a spray 
coating operation 
to coat aluminum 
hulls. Emissions will 
be controlled by 
two spray booths 
previously 
permitted with 
ORCAA.

2/16/2023Fiberglass/Mari
ne Services

AMNOC 23NOC1586 4/7/2023final permit delivered

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 1 of 4



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

ALTA FOREST 
PRODUCTS

SHELTON install stain coater 
with preheating

3/14/2023Wood Products AMNOC 23NOC1587 3/31/2023draft pending source review

CITY OF LACEY - 
MILBANKE

OLYMPIA Install a 755 BHP 
diesel-fired 
emergency engine. 
Expected emissions 
include PM, NOx, 
CO, TAP, VOC, HAP, 
and SO2.

8/3/2022Government LEWNOC 22NOC1572 4/13/2023on hold - per source

CROWN CORK & 
SEAL CO INC

OLYMPIA renew 15AOP1129 6/11/2020Manufacturing JADAOP 20AOP1446 2/3/2022draft in progress

CUSTOM 
FIBERGLASS

ABERDEEN 8/24/2020Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 20NOC1424 4/27/2021on hold - waiting on another 
agency

DENTCENTER LLC OLYMPIA after-the-fact paint 
booth

2/2/2023Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 23NOC1584 2/23/2023draft pending source review

GRAYS HARBOR 
COMMUNITY 
HOSPITAL

ABERDEEN after-the-fact 
approval for 
natural gas fired 
boiler and two 
emergency engines.

3/8/2023Medical Facility AMNOC 23NOC1589 4/14/2023completeness determination 
pending

GRAYS HARBOR 
ENERGY LLC

ELMA 4/13/2022Energy 
Production

MVGREV 22REV1558 12/29/2022draft in progress

INTERFOR US INC - 
PORT ANGELES 
DIVISION

PORT 
ANGELES

obtain an initial 
Title V Air 
Operating Permit

3/2/2022Wood Products LEWAOP 22AOP1556 12/2/2022draft in progress

LAKE QUINAULT 
CHEVRON

QUINAULT After the fact 
replacement/upgra
de of a Stage I 
vapor recovery 
system at an 
existing gas station.

4/21/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1593 5/2/2023draft pending internal review

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 2 of 4



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

McKINLEY PAPER 
COMPANY

PORT 
ANGELES

Adding a Powdered 
Activated Carbon 
injection system for 
additional mercury 
control on Boiler 
#11

12/13/2022Printing/Paper 
Products

MVGNOC 22NOC1581 12/29/2022completeness determination 
pending

MOUNTAIN STONE 
AGGREGATE

TENINO Establish a new 
rock crushing plant

2/10/2021Sand and 
Gravel

LEWNOC 21NOC1478 3/19/2021draft pending source review

MOUNTAIN STONE 
AGGREGATE

TENINO Establish a new 
rock crushing plant

2/10/2021Sand and 
Gravel

LEWNOC 21NOC1478 3/19/2021waiting on SEPA

MURPHY COMPANY ELMA Establish 
enforceable limits 
to ensure potential 
to emit for VOC 
remains below Title 
V thresholds.

4/14/2021Wood Products LEWSMO 21SMO1496 5/24/2022draft pending internal review

PANELTECH HOQUIAM renew AOP 
11AOP864

4/2/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

JADAOP 20AOP1437 4/28/2023draft in progress

PETERSENS 
AUTOMOTIVE

PORT 
ANGELES

install paint booth 7/9/2021Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 21NOC1506 11/3/2022on hold - waiting on another 
agency

SAFEWAY - BELFAIR 
#1571

BELFAIR upgrade 
underground 
storage at their 
gasoline dispensing 
facility

5/1/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1594 5/2/2023initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

SAFEWAY - BELFAIR 
#1571

BELFAIR upgrade 
underground 
storage at their 
gasoline dispensing 
facility

5/1/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1594 5/2/2023draft pending internal review

SAFEWAY - YELM 
#1619

YELM upgrade Satge I 
vapor recovery 
system at their 
existing gas station

5/1/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1595 5/2/2023draft pending internal review

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 3 of 4



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

SAFEWAY - YELM 
#1619

YELM Remove Stage II 
vapor recovery.

3/23/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOC 23NOC1592 4/27/2023final pending final payment

SAFEWAY - YELM 
#1619

YELM upgrade Satge I 
vapor recovery 
system at their 
existing gas station

5/1/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1595 5/2/2023initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

TAYLOR SHELLFISH 
FARMS

QUILCENE Install a 685 
horsepower 
emergency engine. 
Expected increases 
in emissions 
include NOx, PM, 
SO2,VOC, CO and 
TAP/HAP.

3/20/2023Food 
Processing

LEWNOC 23NOC1591 4/24/2023incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

WASHINGTON 
STATE HEALTH 
CARE AUTHORITY

OLYMPIA for after the fact 
emergency 
generator

8/24/2021Government AMNOC 21NOC1523 12/29/2022on hold - per source

WEYERHAEUSER 
NR RAYMOND 
LUMBERMILL

RAYMOND install two identical 
spray-dryer mold 
inhibitor systems to 
apply coatings to 
green lumber.

8/16/2021Wood Products AMNOC 21NOC1521 1/31/2022on hold - per source

WINDFALL 
ARCHITECTUAL 

TUMWATE
R

12/13/2022Wood Products AMNOC 22NOC1578 3/3/2023draft pending source review

Friday, May 5, 2023 Page 4 of 4



���������	����
�������������������������������� �



���������	�����
���������������������������� ����� �!"# $�%�� �!"# &�&�� �!"# #'()��*+,�+* '�&�� �!"# ��$�� �!"# #�&�� �!"# $-.+/�0� ����� �!"# $���� �!"# 1�-�� �!"# $�,2�3��� �4�5 $�&�� �!"# 1�6�� �!"# 6�-�� �!"# #',2�3�728�5��� $�$�� �!"#� #���� �!"# &�-�� �!"# #'9)�432� '�1�� �!"# $�%�� �!"# &�%�� �!"# #':+0!2��$ ��1�� �!"# $�&�� �!"# 1�$�� �!"# �& $�;9<3��4253�=28���2���=�<4�$#��$;>�53+44���3)����8��+3+42  ���2��=�<4��&3)
?@A@BCB DEEF GHD?IJ@BCBKLMNIOM ?EF GP QGPR�2S��+05�<���T�/+3� 2�0



����������	��
������	��
�������������������������������
�

���� !�!��!"�!#�!
$�!%!�!%��!
"&%&�!�� "&#&�!�� "&%%&�!�� "&%#&�!�� "&�%&�!�� "&�#&�!��'()* +,(-.(('�/0-,1-�/2�++23�4*1)�+ /156708�+9(':-0;��<�=;(8�+ >7?*0-.�@0'(A�=;80�B+�+�99@=+>C�DE�F=>@+G3�@EF>+>C�+ H+IJE@@=�DE�F=>@+G3�@EF>+>C�+B(4:)1-:�9104:�+ B7;.K11.�+2(0,-11<�+ L67'06;:��(-?�+



��������	
���
	���������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���" �������#$ ��$���� ��%$�� ������&������������������"�������''�����������$(��$��&�����%$�� �������)���������*��&����� ���+ ,�������($&(��������-.�������� ���#$��������%$�� �������)����/����-�'������ ���0�����������1 �"�2���)�/��)�� ��������3$(����������" ���--�� ���4��$(�5(���������#$�� ���!���'�&����/����(�����"�'$ ��� �������&�6/-�7$(�������$���1����8������9 :



���������	

	����
	����������	������������������	���
����������� �!��"!����	

	����
	#��������������$%%&&&����������
'


	B1-May10-2023BoardAgenda
	B2a-DraftBoardMinutesApril12-2023
	B2b-ExpendituresDisbursements
	B3-Ozone101
	B4-DraftFY2024Budget
	B5-ComplianceManagerUpdate
	B6-EngineeringManagerUpdate
	B7-SeniorAirMonitoringSpecialistUpdate



